
 

HOUSING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Regular Meeting:  March 10, 2010 
Time:  8:00 a.m. 

HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA 94541-6633 
 

The public is welcome at all Housing Commission meetings.  Anyone wishing to address the Commission on an agenda item or on 

business introduced by the Housing Commission may do so when the Chairperson calls for comments on the agenda item. Please be brief 

and limit your comments to the specific subject under discussion.  If you wish to speak on a matter NOT on the Agenda, please file a 

Public Comment card with the Commission Clerk.  Upon recognition by the Chairperson during Public Comment, state your name, 

comments and/or questions.  NOTE:  Only matters within the Housing Commission’s jurisdiction may be addressed.  Time limitations shall 
be at the discretion of the Housing Commission Chairperson. 

 

The Housing Commission Secretary of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda has, on Thursday, March 4, 2010, duly 

distributed this Agenda to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors for posting in the office of the Alameda County Administration Building 

and has posted it on the bulletin board of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance to participate in this 

meeting is needed, please contact the Housing Authority office at (510)727-8511.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will 

enable the Housing Authority to make reasonable arrangements. 
 

  PAGE 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL  

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 10, 2010 MEETING 2 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
On matters not on the Agenda 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

4-1. Discussion of Minutes of the November 10, 2009 Meeting POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

9 

4-2. Format of Meeting Minutes and Speaker Time Limits POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

15 

4-3. Resolution Approving HACA’s 5-Year Plan for Fiscal Years 
2010-2014 and Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 2010 

ACTION  
Public Hearing 

Required 

19 

4-4. Accept Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009 ACTION 24 

4-5. Award Contract for Temporary Services ACTION 28 

4-6. Appointment of Scholarship Committee ACTION 30 

4-7. Budget Status Reports INFORMATION 31 

4-8. Programs Activity Report INFORMATION 34 

5. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

6. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

7. COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 



 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MINUTES 
February 10, 2010 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

3 

HOUSING COMMISSION MINUTES 
Regular Meeting:  January 13, 2010, 8:00 a.m. 

HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA  94541 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 
 

A Regular meeting of the Housing Commission was called to order by 
Chairperson Natarajan at 8:10 a.m. 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS EXCUSED: 
Ruth Atkin Anna May Ruth Cashmere 
Carol Dutra-Vernaci Roberto Medina Ursula Reed 
Mark Gerry Anu Natarajan  
Maxine Haddock Christine Steiner COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Janet Lockhart  None 

 
STAFF PRESENT: 

Christine Gouig, Executive Director Jennifer Cado, Senior Administrative Analyst 
Ron Dion, Deputy Director for Programs Sharon DeCray, HAFS Manager 
Tom Makin, Deputy Director for Operations Mary Rizzo-Shuman, HAHM Manager 
Cathy Leoncio, Finance Director Melissa Taesali, Executive Assistant 

 
2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 13, 2010 MEETING 

 
Recommendation:  Approve the minutes of the January 13, 2010 meeting 
 
Questions and Comments: 
Pamela Holmes-Morton, Housing Specialist, stated that the meeting minutes of 
the January 13, 2010 meeting did not reflect specific statements that she made 
at that meeting and read these statements to the Commission.  Chairperson 
Natarajan stated that the meeting minutes are a recap of the discussions and 
actions taken at a meeting and that statements made during a meeting are not 
reflected word for word in the written meeting minutes.  She also stated that Ms. 
Holmes-Morton’s comments were recorded on tape.  Cmr. Dutra-Vernaci asked 
how long staff retains the recordings from the meetings and staff indicated that 
the tapes are retained permanently. 
 
Mr. Bernard Morton, a member of the public, stated that the minutes of the 
January 13, 2010 meeting did not specify that he made three requests of the 
Commission at that meeting.  Mr. Morton read these requests to the 
Commission. Cmr. Atkin made a motion to amend the minutes of the January 13, 
2010 meeting to note that Mr. Morton made three requests at that meeting.  The 
motion was seconded by Cmr. Gerry. 
 

Motion/Second: Atkin/Gerry.  7 ayes; 2 abstentions:  Cmrs. May 
and Steiner 

Motion passed 
 
 



 

4 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – On items not on the agenda 
 
Mr. Bernard Morton commented on the issues that were raised previously by Ms. 
Pamela Holmes-Morton concerning the Leasing Services Lead Worker 
recruitment.  He noted that a petition was signed by HACA employees requesting 
that the Commission look into the issues that Ms. Holmes-Morton brought to the 
Commission regarding this recruitment.  He stated that he found it inappropriate 
that the Commission directed the Executive Director and HACA management to 
look into the matter.  Mr. Morton further stated that since he is not a HACA 
employee, the grievance process is not available to him and that as a taxpaying 
citizen he has a right to express his concerns to the Commission regarding this 
recruitment. 
  
Daniel Taylor, Leasing Services Lead Worker, commented on the petition.  He 
stated that some of the employees who signed the petition were told that the 
subject of the petition was HACA’s general hiring practices.  He further stated 
that these employees indicated that additional statements referencing the July 
29, 2009 Leasing Services Lead Worker recruitment were later added to the 
signed petition when the petition was presented to the Executive Director and 
the Commission. 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

4-1. Resolution Recognizing Allan Maris ACTION 

Resolution No.  04-10 

 

Christine Gouig presented the staff report. 
 
Ms. Gouig explained that Allan Maris, former Housing Commissioner from the City of 
Albany, was being recognized for his service on the Commission.  She read Resolution 
No. 04-10 and announced that HACA will make a donation to Engineers Without 
Borders in honor of Mr. Maris.  Mr. Maris expressed his appreciation for the recognition 
and for the donation.  The Commissioners and staff applauded Mr. Maris. 
 

4-2. Discussion of the Housing Commission Meeting Minutes 

of November 10, 2009 

POSSIBLE  

ACTION 

 

Christine Gouig presented the staff report. 
 
Chairperson Natarajan called for comments from the Commission and from the public 
on the minutes of the November 10, 2009 meeting. 
 
Questions and comments: 
 
Ms. Pamela Holmes-Morton, Housing Specialist, noted that the minutes of the 
November 10th meeting referenced comments made by Cmr. Maris but a typo in the 
minutes incorrectly showed that these comments were made by “Cmr. Makin.”  She 
asked to have this corrected. 



 

5 

 
Recommendation:  Amend the minutes of November 10, 2010 to correct the 
reference to the statement made by Cmr. Maris. 
Motion/Second: Lockhart/Haddock.  7 ayes; 2 abstentions:  Cmrs. May 

and Steiner   
Motion passed 
 

4-3. Utility Allowance Schedule ACTION 
Resolution No. 05-10 

 
Jennifer Cado presented the staff report. 
 
Ms. Cado reported that staff completed its annual review and explained the 
methodology for analyzing the utility rates.  She summarized the findings and reported 
that some utilities have changed by at least 10%.  Ms. Cado explained that when utility 
rates have changed by 10% or more, HUD requires a revision to the utility allowance 
schedule.   
 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 05-10 approving an update to the utility 
allowance schedule 
Motion/Second:  Haddock/Dutra-Vernaci.  Unanimous 

Motion passed 
 

4-4. Section 8 Benefit Payment Standards 
(Continued from the January 13, 2010 meeting) 

ACTION 

 
Ron Dion presented the staff report. 
 
Mr. Dion reported that staff met with Rental Housing Owners Association (RHO) 
Executive Director Tim May, some members of RHO’s Board of Directors, and Steve 
Edrington, Executive Director of the Rental Housing Association of Northern Alameda 
County (RHANAC).  He stated that staff discussed HACA’s rationale behind a proposed 
reduction to the Section 8 Benefit Payment Standards and answered questions from the 
meeting attendees.  Mr. Dion stated that RHO was supportive of HACA’s need to reduce 
the Section 8 Benefit Payment Standards.  He also stated that he would be writing an 
article for an upcoming RHO newsletter once the Commission takes action on this 
matter. 
  
Questions and comments: 
 
Cmr. Gerry reported that he also met with Mr. May and that Mr. May was comfortable 
about moving forward with the update to the Section 8 Benefit Payment Standards. 
 

Recommendation: Approve update to HACA’s Section 8 Benefit Payment 
Standards 
Motion/Second: Gerry/Lockhart.  Unanimous 
 

4-5. Budget/Audit Committee Appointments ACTION 

 

Christine Gouig presented the staff report. 
 



 

6 

Ms. Gouig stated that the Fiscal Year 2009-2010 Budget/Audit Committee was 
comprised of Cmrs. Dutra-Vernaci, Medina and Natarajan.  She asked the Commission 
to appoint a Committee to work with staff for the Fiscal Year 2010-2011.   
 
Chairperson Natarajan called for volunteers.  After a brief discussion, Cmrs. Dutra-
Vernaci, Gerry, and Haddock were nominated for the Committee. 
 

Recommendation: Appoint Cmrs. Dutra-Vernaci, Gerry, and Haddock to the 
Budget/Audit Committee for the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 
Motion/Second: Lockhart/Atkin.  Unanimous 

 
Melissa Taesali, Executive Assistant, informed Chairperson Natarajan that the 

Commission did not make a motion on the resolution for Allan Maris (Item 4-1.).  
Chairperson Natarajan called for a motion.   

 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 04-10 recognizing Allan Maris for his 
years of service on the Housing Commission 

 Motion/Second:  Dutra-Vernaci/Atkin.  Unanimous 
 

4-6. Draft of HACA’s 5-Year Plan for Fiscal Years 2010-
2014 and Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 2010 

INFORMATION 

 
Ron Dion presented the staff report. 
 
Mr. Dion explained that the drafts of HACA’s 5-Year Plan and Annual Plan were being 
presented to the Commission at this time for their review only.  He indicated that staff 
will seek final action from the Commission on the proposed drafts at the Commission’s 
March 10, 2010 meeting.   
 

4-7. Quarterly Budget Status Reports for the Quarter 
Ending December 31, 2009 

INFORMATION 

4-8. Programs Activity Report INFORMATION 

 
Chairperson Natarajan called for questions and comments on informational items 4-7 
and 4-8.  Since there were none, the Commission moved on to the next agenda item. 
 
5. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
None. 
 

6. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Cmr. Atkin noted that the statement that appears at the top of the Housing 
Commission and Personnel Committee meeting agendas do not specify a time 
limit for speakers.  She suggested that staff revise the statements to specify an 
established time limit and added that time limits for speakers was a common  
practice at public meetings.  The Commission was in agreement.  Ms. Gouig 
stated that staff could agendize this topic for the next Housing Commission and 
Personnel Committee meetings. 
 



 

7 

A discussion on simplifying the format of the meeting minutes ensued.  Ms. 
Gouig noted that many public meeting minutes typically state the motions, report 
the actions taken, and record the votes.  Some Commissioners cited the format 
of the meeting minutes for their city council meetings as examples.  Ms. Gouig 
stated that the subject of the format of the meeting minutes could also be an 
agenda item for the next Housing Commission and Personnel Committee 
meetings.   
 
Cmr. Gerry updated the Commission on a matter he was looking into involving a 
Section 8 landlord.  Cmr. Gerry also commented on Section 8 fraud and indicated 
that he would like staff to continue efforts in uncovering Section 8 fraud. 
 
Cmr. Lockhart reported that she was approached by a multi-family housing 
tenant about the issue of second hand smoke.  Cmrs. Lockhart and Atkin 
commented that staff may want to consider a future discussion on a second hand 
smoke policy for HACA’s public housing units.    
 
Cmr. May asked about the new housing software and inquired if the new 
software had been set up to provide Section 8 data that separates the 
incorporated and unincorporated areas of the county.  Mr. Makin explained that 
staff was working with the programmers to get this customization completed.  
Cmr. May indicated that one of the proposed goals for 2010 for the City of 
Hayward is to conduct a study of the Section 8 program in the City of Hayward 
and said that this data would be important for the study.   
   

7. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
Ms. Gouig announced that HACA received recognition by HUD for being a 2009 
Housing Choice Voucher Program High Performer.   

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business Chairperson Natarajan adjourned the Housing 
Commission meeting at 9:05 a.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Melissa Taesali 
Executive Assistant 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
Christine Gouig   Date  Anu Natarajan   Date 
Executive Director/Commission Secretary Chairperson 
 



 

8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
March 10, 2010 

 

 
 

 
 



 

9 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  March 10, 2010 
 

Subject: Discussion of the Minutes of the November 10, 2009 
Meeting 

  
Exhibits Attached: Amended Minutes of the November 10, 2009 Meeting 
  
Recommendation: None 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
The Housing Commission meeting minutes of November 10, 2009 were 
approved at your January 13, 2010 meeting.  Subsequent to the approval of 
these minutes, a member of the public indicated during the Public Comment 
period that she wanted to comment on what she felt were errors in the 
meeting minutes and you directed that these minutes be placed on your 
February 10, 2010 meeting agenda for further discussion.   
 
The minutes of November 10, 2009 were discussed at your February meeting 
and at the conclusion of the discussion your Commission voted to amend the 
November 10th minutes to correct an error discovered by a member of the 
public.   
 
Due to a problem with the recording equipment during the taping of the 
February Commission meeting, no audio from that meeting is captured on 
the tape recordings of that meeting.  Staff is placing the minutes of the 
November 10, 2009 meeting on your March meeting agenda to allow 
members of the public the opportunity to re-submit their comments 
regarding the November 10, 2009 meeting minutes and have these 
comments recorded on tape. 
 



 

10 

 

- A M E N D E D -  

 
HOUSING COMMISSION MINUTES   

Special Meeting:  November 10, 2009, 8:00 a.m. 

HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA  94541 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 
 

A Special meeting of the Housing Commission was called to order by Chairperson 
Natarajan at 8:03 a.m. 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS EXCUSED: 
Runa Atai  (entered after roll call) Anna May Ruth Atkin 
Carol Dutra-Vernaci Roberto Medina Mark Gerry 
Maxine Haddock Anu Natarajan  
Janet Lockhart Ursula Reed (entered after roll call) 
Allan Maris (entered after roll call) Christine Steiner 

 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Christine Gouig, Executive Director Sharon DeCray, HAFS Manager 
Ron Dion, Deputy Director for Programs Jim McRoberts, IT Manager 
Cathy Leoncio, Finance Director Mary Rizzo-Shuman, HAHM Manager 
Tom Makin, Deputy Director for Operations George Smith, Contracts Manager 
Irv Aragon, Network Administrator Melissa Taesali, Executive Assistant 
Jennifer Cado, Sr. Administrative Analyst  

 

2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 14, 2009 MEETING 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the minutes of October 14, 2009 
Motion/Second: Lockhart/Dutra-Vernaci.  Unanimous 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – On items not on the agenda 
 
Pamela Holmes-Morton submitted a document to the Housing Commission.  Ms. 
Morton stated that the document outlined her concerns with a recent 
recruitment.   
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

 

4-1. Management Class Annual Comparability Adjustment ACTION 

 
Tom Makin presented the staff report. 
 
Mr. Makin reported that a survey of the agencies in the Housing Authority’s 
Comparability Pool was conducted to determine the cost of living salary adjustments 
that were granted to management employees in the Pool.  Mr. Makin presented the 



 

11 

results of the survey and explained that the average adjustment was 1.13%, and that 
the amount, rounded down to 1%, is the amount proposed for the HACA management 
class annual comparability adjustment.  He indicated that the adjustment would be 
applied to both the employees’ salaries and salary ranges and that approval was 
required from the Commission. 
 

Recommendation:  Approve the management class comparability adjustment. 
Motion/Second: Maris/Medina.  Unanimous 
 

4-2. Addition of an Administrative Analyst Position ACTION 

 

Tom Makin presented the staff report. 
 
Mr. Makin reported that staff has been working to bring HACA’s existing contracts into 
compliance with the new HACA Procurement Policy that was adopted by the 
Commission in October 2008.  He described some of the procurement activities and 
contracts that staff has completed and indicated that there are still several existing 
contracts that are not in compliance with the new Procurement Policy.  He stated that 
this is a concern since HUD closely monitors procurement activities whenever they 
conduct audits of housing authorities. 
 
Mr. Makin explained that since HACA does not have full time procurement staff, staff 
recommends the addition of an Administrative Analyst position to bring the balance of 
the Housing Authority’s contracts and contracting activities into compliance with the 
Procurement Policy. He noted that the appointment to this position would be on a 
provisional basis, expected to last one year.  Mr. Makin also noted that the Personnel 
Committee had considered and approved the creation of the Administrative Analyst 
position at their meeting held earlier that morning and that final approval from the 
Housing Commission is required. 
 

Recommendation: Approve the addition of an Administrative Analyst position. 
Motion/Second:   Haddock/May.   8 ayes; 1 nay:  Cmr. Maris;  
   1 abstention:  Cmr. Reed  

   Motion passed 
 

4-3. Award Contract for Architect of Record ACTION 

 
Tom Makin presented the staff report. 
 
Mr. Makin reported that staff issued a request for qualifications (RFQ) for an architect of 
record in July and that 15 responses were received.  He explained that staff reviewed 
and scored the responses and selected a “short list” of 3 firms.  He further explained 
that the firms were invited to a formal panel interview and presentation on September 
30, 2009 and reported that the panel unanimously selected K2A Architecture + 
Interiors (K2A).  Mr. Makin stated that K2A’s presentation was thorough and that they 
used a Styrofoam model of the office building to present design alternatives that 
included a cost analysis detailing how the alternatives would save construction costs.  
He also stated that K2A had excellent references including the San Mateo County 
Housing Authority, the San Francisco Housing Authority, the City of San Francisco, the 



 

12 

San Francisco Superior Court, City College of San Francisco, and Calyon Investments.   
Mr. Makin noted that staff reviewed K2A’s financial statements and the information that 
was presented was acceptable.  He recommended that the Commission award the 
contract for architectural and engineering services to K2A for a two year period with an 
option for a third year.  Henry Kwong, Principal, and Cheryl Gordon, Interior Design 
Director, were present at the meeting to answer questions from the Commission. 
 
Questions and Comments from the Commission:      
Cmr. Steiner recounted that prior to the termination of the contract with Edward J. Gee 
and Associates (EJGA) plans had been submitted to the City of Hayward.  She asked 
staff for the outcome.  Mr. Makin stated that after the plans were submitted, HACA’s 
Contracts Manager met with the city staff to discuss their comments on the plans.  Mr. 
Makin said that the comments from the city were extensive and that the plans 
developed by the new architect will have to address the city’s concerns.  Cmr. Steiner 
also asked for an updated timeline of the office remodel.  Mr. Makin explained that once 
the contract is awarded and signed, the new architects will need a couple of weeks to 
familiarize themselves with the state of the project and then they will be able to provide 
a schedule for the project. 
 
Chairperson Natarajan asked Mr. Kwong to outline his experience with 
green/sustainable projects.  Mr. Kwong described a project that K2A did for the City 
College of San Francisco.  He also indicated that some of K2A’s subcontractors are 
LEED consultants that have worked on green/sustainable buildings throughout the Bay 
Area.  Chairperson Natarajan asked if there were any LEED Accredited Professionals 
(LEED APs) within the K2A organization.  Mr. Kwong indicated that he and Ms. Gordon 
both were LEED APs.  Ms. Gordon added that two project managers at K2A were also 
LEED APs.  
 
Cmr. Maris asked what criteria staff used to judge the firm’s financial statements as 
acceptable.  Mr. Makin explained that in the response to the RFQ, K2A provided 
indication of their ongoing projects.  He further explained that the ongoing projects 
were reflected in their financial statements.  Cmr. Maris asked how long K2A has been 
in business.  Ms. Gordon stated that in 2010, K2A will celebrate its 20 year anniversary 
and indicated that K2A has future projects lined up.  Cmr. Maris asked what priority 
K2A will give to the HACA project.  Ms. Gordon stated that once the contract is awarded 
they will begin working on the HACA project immediately.  Mr. Kwong added that they 
have started working on some design plans already and are excited to start the HACA 
office remodel project. 
  

Recommendation: Award contract for Architect of Record to K2A Architecture + 
    Interiors. 
Motion/Second:   Reed/Maris.  Unanimous 
 

4-4. Quarterly Budget Status Report for the Quarter Ending 

September 30, 2009 

INFORMATION 

 
Cathy Leoncio presented the staff report.  Report received with no questions or 
comments from the Commission. 



 

13 

4-5. Program Activity Reports INFORMATION 

 
Jennifer Cado presented the staff report.   
 
Ms. Cado highlighted two items in the report.  She reported that the participants in the 
2009 NAHRO What Home Means to Me poster contest would be recognized at the next 
Housing Commission meeting scheduled for December 9, 2009.   
 
She also reported that staff opened the waitlist for public housing one bedroom units 
for the elderly and disabled in Union City.  Ms. Cado stated that the waitlist was opened 
from November 2, 2009 to November 6, 2009 and that HACA received a little over 500 
applications.  She also stated that HACA would conduct a lottery among the 
applications received to create a waitlist of 300 applicants.  Ms. Cado reported that a 
number of city libraries and community based organizations served as distribution sites.  
Ms. Gouig commented that staff received excellent cooperation from the city libraries.   
  
Questions and Comments from the Commission: 
Cmr. May asked Ms. Cado to clarify how the libraries acted as distribution sites.  Ms. 
Cado explained that the libraries agreed to let HACA place paper applications at the 
library so that those who did not have access to the internet could visit their local 
library for a paper application.  
 
5. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

  
 None. 
 
6. COMMISSIONER REPORTS  

 
None. 
 
Cmr. Maris commented on the personnel matter that was raised by Pamela 
Holmes-Morton and asked if staff was looking into the matter.  Cmr. Dutra-
Vernaci, who chaired the Personnel Committee meeting earlier that morning, 
stated that she talked to Christine Gouig about the issues and that Ms. Gouig 
reassured her that the matter is being handled internally.  Cmr. Maris thanked 
Cmr. Dutra-Vernaci and stated that he wanted to be sure that the matter was 
being dealt with.   
 

7. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Christine Gouig announced that HACA was one of a few select housing authorities 
invited by HUD’s Secretary Shaun Donovan to participate in a Section 8 
stakeholders meeting in Washington D.C.  She stated that it was an honor to be 
invited and reported that Ron Dion, HACA’s Deputy Director for Programs, 
attended the event.  She asked Ron to speak briefly about the event.  Mr. Dion 
described the format for the meetings and indicated that attendees had the 
opportunity to talk with Secretary Donovan during question and answer sessions.  
He stated that the topics for discussion at the meetings and work sessions 
included deconcentration, HUD’s initiative to re-engineer business practices by 
creating a massive database to automate information, and HUD’s plan to conduct 



 

14 

an administrative fee study to identify components for operating an efficient and 
effective Section 8 program and using that model to fund housing authorities in 
the future.  Mr. Dion reported that meetings were very productive and 
informative. 
 
Ms. Gouig reminded the Commission that the time of the December meeting was 
changed to 5:00 p.m.  She stated that at the December meeting, staff would 
recognize the six local NAHRO Poster Contest winners.  Ms. DeCray announced 
that following the Commission meeting, FSS would be holding their gift making 
event.  She indicated that refreshments would be served and invited the 
Commissioners to stay on after their meeting to participate in the FSS event.  
Ms. DeCray also talked about the FSS holiday gift giving effort and stated that 
staff was seeking donations.  She stated that the goal was to give every FSS 
family a gift card for the holidays.    

  
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business Chairperson Natarajan adjourned the meeting at 
8:40 a.m. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Melissa Taesali 
Executive Assistant 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
Christine Gouig   Date  Anu Natarajan   Date 
Executive Director/Commission Secretary Chairperson 
 
 



 

15 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
Meeting:  March 10, 2010 

 
Subject: Format of Meeting Minutes and Speaker Time Limits 
  
Exhibits Attached: - Survey of Public Agencies 

- Revised Statement for Commission Agenda 
- Speaker Card with Time Limit Information  
- Attachment A:  Meeting Minutes from the Alameda 

County Board of Supervisors  
  
Recommendation: Receive the attached information and provide 

direction to staff 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
At your February 2010 meeting, your Commission discussed setting time 
limits for public speakers at Commission meetings to allow adequate time for 
consideration of all matters on the agenda and to ensure consistency in the 
time allotted to each public speaker.  Currently, time limitations for public 
speakers at your meetings are set at the discretion of the Commission 
Chairperson.  You directed staff to review the practice of Alameda County 
cities in HACA’s jurisdiction. 
 
You also discussed re-formatting your meeting minutes in a summary form.  
HACA uses a fairly detailed format to report the minutes of Housing 
Commission meetings.  This format includes a summary of staff’s 
presentation, a narrative of the questions raised and comments made by the 
Commission, staff’s responses, comments from members of the public and a 
record of motions and votes.  Recently, a member of the public has raised 
questions regarding the manner in which statements and comments have 
been summarized in the meeting minutes. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff surveyed Alameda County and the cities that are represented in HACA’s 
jurisdiction to determine whether they employ time limits for public speakers 
and how they report their meeting minutes.  The attached chart outlines the 
results of this survey.  As you can see, all jurisdictions have time limits, 
typically 3 minutes, although a few have up to 5 minutes and Newark allows 
10 minutes.  With respect to format of the minutes, only Hayward and 
Pleasanton have more detailed minutes—the others all have summary action 
minutes. 



 

16 

 
Agency Time Limits for Public Speakers Format of  

Meeting Minutes 

H
A
C
A
 Housing Commission � At the discretion of the Housing Commission 

Chairperson 
Detailed Minutes 

A
L
A
M
E
D
A
  

C
O
U
N
T
Y
  

Board of Supervisors � 3 minutes per speaker 

 

 

Summary Action Minutes 

Albany  
City Council 

� 3 minutes per speaker Summary Action Minutes 

Dublin  
City Council 

� 3 minutes per speaker Summary Action Minutes 

Emeryville  
City Council 

� 3 minutes per speaker Summary Action Minutes 

Fremont  
City Council 

� 4 minutes per speaker for Public Comment 
(non-agenda items) 

� Public Hearings & Public Comment on agenda 
items: 

− 3 minutes per speaker if 1-5 speakers 
− 2 minutes per speaker if 5-30 speakers 
− 1 minute per speaker if 30+ speakers 

 

Summary Action Minutes  

Hayward  
City Council 

� 3 minutes per speaker 
� 5 minutes per speaker representing a group of 

citizens or organization 

Detailed Minutes 

Newark  
City Council 

� 10 minutes per speaker  Summary Action Minutes 

Pleasanton  
City Council 

� 3 minutes per speaker for Public Comment 
(non-agenda items) 

� 3 minutes per speaker for Agenda Items 
� Mayor may reduce speaker time  

Detailed minutes 

San Leandro  
City Council 

� 3 minutes per speaker for Public Comment 
� 5 minutes per speaker for Public Hearings 
� Mayor may reduce speaker time  

Summary Action Minutes  

C
IT
IE
S
 I
N
 H
A
C
A
’S
 J
U
R
IS
D
IC
T
IO
N
 

Union City  
City Council 

� 3 minutes per speaker 
� If more than 10 speakers, cards will be shuffled 

and chosen at random 
� Remaining speakers have the opportunity to 

speak during the Second Oral Communications 
period on the agenda   

Summary Action Minutes 



 

17 

 

HOUSING COMMISSION AGENDA 
Regular Meeting:  March 10, 2010 

Time:  8:00 a.m. 
HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA 94541-6633 

 
ORIGINAL STATEMENT: 

The public is welcome at all Housing Commission meetings.  Anyone wishing to address the 

Commission on an agenda item or on business introduced by the Housing Commission may do 

so when the Chairperson calls for comments on the agenda item. Please be brief and limit your 

comments to the specific subject under discussion.  If you wish to speak on a matter NOT on the 

Agenda, please file a Public Comment card with the Commission Clerk.  Upon recognition by the 

Chairperson during Public Comment, state your name, comments and/or questions.  NOTE:  

Only matters within the Housing Commission’s jurisdiction may be addressed.  Time limitations 

shall be at the discretion of the Housing Commission Chairperson. 

  

The Housing Commission Secretary of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda has, on 

Thursday, March 4, 2010, duly distributed this Agenda to the Clerk of the Board of 

Supervisors for posting in the office of the Alameda County Administration Building and has 

posted it on the bulletin board of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if 

special assistance to participate in this meeting is needed, please contact the Housing Authority 

office at (510)727-8511.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 

Housing Authority to make reasonable arrangements. 

 

 

REVISED STATEMENT: 

The public is welcome at all Housing Commission meetings.  If you wish to speak on a matter 

NOT on the Agenda, please file a Public Comment card with the Commission Clerk.  Upon 

recognition by the Chairperson during Public Comment, state your name, comments and/or 

questions.  Anyone wishing to address the Commission on an agenda item or on business 

introduced by the Housing Commission may do so when the Chairperson calls for comments on 

the agenda item.  Please be brief and limit your comments to the specific subject under 

discussion.   NOTE:  Only matters within the Housing Commission’s jurisdiction may be 

addressed.   

 

To allow the opportunity for all to speak, a time limit of 3 minutes has been set for public 

speakers wishing to address the Housing Commission.   

 

The Housing Commission Secretary of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda has, on 

Thursday, March 4, 2010, duly distributed this Agenda to the Clerk of the Board of 

Supervisors for posting in the office of the Alameda County Administration Building and has 

posted it on the bulletin board of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if 

special assistance to participate in this meeting is needed, please contact the Housing Authority 

office at (510)727-8511.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 

Housing Authority to make reasonable arrangements. 

 



 

18 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 

 
 
INSTRUCTIONS: 
  
If you wish to speak on a matter NOT on the agenda please complete this public comment 
card and turn it in to the Commission Clerk.  
 
Upon recognition by the Chairperson during Public Comment, please state your name, 
comments, and/or questions. 
 
To allow the opportunity for all to speak, a time limit of 3 minutes has been set for public 
speakers wishing to address the Commission. 

 
 

Meeting: 
 

Meeting Date: 
 

Name: 
 

Subject: 
 

 
 

 

 
The public is permitted to address the Housing Commission on an item not appearing on the 
posted agenda.  In accordance with State Law, however, no action or discussion may take place 
on any item not appearing on the posted agenda.  The Housing Commission may respond to 
statements made or questions asked or may request Staff to report back at a future meeting 
concerning the matter.  Any member of the public may contact the Administration Department 
related to the proper procedure to place an item on a future Housing Commission Agenda.  The 
exceptions under which the Housing Commission MAY discuss and/or take action on items not 
appearing on the agenda are contained in Government Code Section 54954.2(b)(1)(2)(3). 

 



 

19 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
Meeting:  March 10, 2010 

 
Subject: Resolution Approving 5-Year and Annual Plan for 

Fiscal Year 2010 – Public Hearing Required 
  
Exhibits Attached: − Resolution No. 06-10  

− Attachment B:  PHA 5-Year and Annual Plan for 
Fiscal Year 2010 

  
Recommendation: None 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
As staff indicated at last month’s meeting when we presented the draft plans for your 
Commission’s information and comment, the HACA 5-Year and Annual Plans are 
general guides to HACA’s policies, programs, operations, and strategies for meeting 
local housing needs and goals.  HUD regulations require that housing authorities update 
their 5-Year Plans in 2010 and their Annual Plans each year. 
 
Staff has prepared the draft Plans using the templates required by HUD.  The Plans are 
due at HUD by April 15.  A public hearing will need to be held, for which HACA 
published the notice in a timely manner.  No comments had been received as of the 
time of this agenda’s preparation. 
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 

 
The following are the substantive changes proposed in the current draft Plans: 
HACA proposes to adopt the following goals and objectives: 

• Preserve the long-term financial viability of all 230 of HACA’s Public Housing 
units by disposing of them in orderly phases; by obtaining project-based 
replacement vouchers or project-based rental assistance for each unit; and by 
transferring the units to a HACA-controlled non-profit entity in order to achieve a 
one-to-one replacement of all 230 Public Housing units with Section 8 Project-
Based Voucher units or other HUD project-based rental assistance. 

• Achieve consolidation with the Dublin Housing Authority. 

• Evaluate and, if feasible, undertake public housing development opportunities 
using Replacement Housing Factor (RHF) funds and other funds available, 
including HUD development funds. 

• Partner with social services providers in order to use housing as a platform for 
improving quality of life, including as set forth in the FY 2011 HUD budget. 



 

20 

• Achieve over 98% utilization of HACA’s HCVP HAP payments in order to assist as 
many qualified families as possible. 

• Reduce the number of annual reexaminations that are more than 2 months 
overdue from the SEMAP rating category of 5 to 10 percent to the SEMAP rating 
category of fewer than 5 percent. 

 
HACA also proposes to revise one element of its definition of a “significant amendment” 
and a “substantial deviation/modification from “any change with regard to demolition or 
disposition, designation, homeownership programs, or conversion activities” to an 
action “that provides for public housing demolition and/or disposition”.  This definition 
is entirely at the discretion of the local housing authority. 
 
As in recent years, total Capital Funds are now shown as a transfer to operations rather 
than being separately budgeted for each project.  This is allowed for housing authorities 
with fewer than 250 public housing units and that, like HACA, are, at a minimum, 
standard performers under the PHAS reporting system.  Capital Fund allocations are 
determined either by HUD formula (annual allocations), or through competition (such 
as the capital funds made available by last year’s stimulus funding for the Mission View 
Development re-siding project). 
 
As required by HUD regulation, a meeting of the Resident Advisory Board (RAB) to 
solicit input on the draft Plan was held Thursday, March 4, 2010.  Minutes of the 
meeting along with staff responses are attached (Attachment “B”).  No changes to the 
draft Plan are proposed in response to RAB input. 
 
Staff recommends your Commission conduct a Public Hearing on the draft Plan, 
consider comments and revisions, and authorize staff to submit the Plan to HUD.  HUD 
has 75 days to approve the Plan and will post the Plan on its website. 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 

21 



 

22 



 

23 



 

24 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  March 10, 2010 
 

Subject: Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009 
  
Exhibits Attached: Attachment C:  Audit Reports and Certificate of Actual 

Modernization Cost  
  
Recommendation: Accept Reports 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 
 

The Housing Authority’s (HACA) audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009 was completed by the auditors, Patel & Associates, on January 29, 
2010.  The audit is an unqualified audit and there were no financial 
statement findings nor were there any material findings regarding 
compliance with program or internal control requirements.  Staff 
recommends that your Commission accept the audit reports. 
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
Audit Report 

 
In the independent auditor's report addressed to the Board of 
Commissioners, Patel & Associates opined that HACA’s financial statements 
at the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009 were stated fairly in all material 
respects.  The auditors did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting that they considered to be material weaknesses. 
 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (pages 3-10) 

 
The MD&A is an overview of HACA’s financial activity and highlights changes 
in our financial position as well as identifies significant financial and individual 
fund issues.  It also discusses the current year's results in comparison with 
the prior year, with emphasis on the current year. 
 
1. Total assets were $30.31 million 
2. Total liabilities were $1.48 million 
3. HACA’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $28.83 million (net assets) of 

which $9.03 million are invested in capital assets and $5.74 million are 
restricted 

4. Total revenues were $76.80 million 
5. Total expenses were $79.64 million 



 

25 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information about HACA’s assets and 
liabilities, and is similar to a balance sheet.  The Statement of Net Assets 
reports all financial and capital resources for HACA.  The Authority-Wide 
Statement of Net Assets (Table 1, page 6) shows net assets at year end of 
$28.83 million compared to $31.67 million in 2008, a decrease of $2.84 
million (9%).   
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets reports 
HACA’s revenues by source and type and its expenses by category to 
substantiate the change in net assets for the fiscal year.  Table 3 on page 8 
shows total revenue of $76.80 million compared to $80.38 million in 2008, a 
decrease of $3.58 million (4%), and total expenses of $79.64 million 
compared to $77.08 million in 2008, an increase of $2.56 million (3%).  
There is a net loss of $2.84 million-- approximately $2.45 million is 
attributable to housing assistance payments made to landlords in excess of 
funding received from HUD and was offset by using Net Assets restricted for 
Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments (HAP).  The Housing Choice Voucher 
program received less annual contributions from HUD (5%) as compared to 
last year.  The Housing Choice Voucher Net Assets restricted for Housing 
Assistance Payment (HAP) is $5.64M compared to $8.09M in 2008.   
 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 

Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2009

Investment income 

(0.32%)

HUD PHA grants (95.13%)

Capital grants

 (0.26%)

Rental revenue-tenants 

(1.93%)

Other revenue 

(2.35%)

 



 

26 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY

 Expenses for Fiscal Year 2009

Housing assistance

payments

 (87.01%)

Administration

 (9.75%)

General expenses 

(0.59%)

Ordinary maintenance 

and operations 

(1.40%)

Depreciation

 (1.00%)

Tenant service 

(0.01%)
Utilities

 (0.24%)

 
 
Audited Financial Statements (pages 11-15) 
 
Patel & Associates conducted an audit of the financial statements of each of 
the programs administered by HACA.  Each program is considered a separate 
accounting entity with its own assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and 
expenses. 
 
Page 13 shows the Statement of Net Assets – Propriety Funds individually 
and in aggregate. 
 
Page 14 shows the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Assets – Proprietary Funds.  As the Commission will note, this Statement 
under Income (Loss) before transfers shows balances that include 
depreciation expense.  While depreciation is treated as an expense that 
reduces the results of operations, it does not have an impact on Restricted 
and Unrestricted Net Assets.  When the depreciation expense is excluded, the 
change in net assets balances shows the actual income or loss for the year.   
 
The Low Rent Public Housing program had a net loss of $171,699 while the 
Housing Choice Voucher program had a net loss of $2,052,271 ($48,685 was 
used to purchase capital equipment; $344,412 income which may be used 
for operations and $2,445,368 loss due to the use of restricted net assets for 
Housing Assistance Payments).  The Housing Development Fund had a net 
loss of $84,840; Park Terrace had a net income of $46,919 and Ocean 
Avenue a net income of $26,852. 



 

27 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (pages 30-39) 
 
Section 1 – Summary of Auditor’s Results on page 34 shows that the audit 
was an unqualified audit.  HACA is qualified as a low-risk auditee because a 
single audit has been conducted and there were no significant findings in the 
past two years. 
 
There were no financial statement findings nor were there any material 
findings regarding compliance with program or internal control requirements 
(pages 30-31, 35). 
 
There were no matters reported on non-compliance with the requirements 
applicable to the programs administered by HACA under "Section III-Federal 
Award Findings and Questioned Costs" (page 35).  Prior year findings were 
addressed, implemented and closed out (page 36).  
 
Certificate of Actual Modernization Cost 

 
Every year, HUD provides Capital Funds to housing authorities for the 
development, financing, and modernization of public housing developments 
and for management improvements.  Upon expenditure of all funds for a 
given grant year, a housing authority must submit to HUD an audited Actual 
Modernization Cost Certificate (AMCC), in a form prescribed by HUD, for 
review and approval for audit.  After audit verification, HUD approves the 
AMCC. 
 
The AMCC for the Capital Fund program is enclosed.  It was prepared by 
Patel & Associates as part of the audit of our fiscal year June 30, 2009 and 
covers the Capital Fund grant awarded in 2007. 
 
The auditor determined that the total cost was $348,631; that all costs have 
been paid and liabilities discharged and that HACA did not incur any budget 
overruns.  The work funded under this contract was completed within the 
fiscal year and the AMCC now closes the project. 
 



 

28 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting: March 10, 2010   
 

Subject: Award Contract For Temporary Employment Services 
  
Exhibits Attached: Bid Tabulation 
  
Recommendation: Award Contract to Howroyd-Wright Employment 

Services dba AppleOne 
  
Financial Statement: $151,730.64 anticipated for first year of contract 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
In January 2010 staff bid out a contract for Temporary Employment Services.  
The Housing Authority uses temporary personnel when employees are on 
leaves of absence, for periods between recruitments and for special projects.  
 
As it is not possible to know the exact number of hours or classification of 
temporary employees that might be required each year, bidders were asked 
to bid on different classifications of temporary employees, with an 
anticipation of the annual hours used by the Housing Authority for each class.  
The bid documents indicated that billed hourly rates may be adjusted in 
subsequent years based on the change in the San Francisco-Oakland-San 
Jose area CPI.  
 
Staff received nine proposals.  The low bidder was AppleOne, a nationwide 
temporary employment agency with over 250 offices.  The Housing Authority 
will be serviced by the Fremont branch office.  
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
AppleOne is a minority and women-owned business (M/WBE) and has 
extensive experience working with government agencies.  It has established 
a “Government Solutions” division and currently has over 250 government 
contracts.  This division provides unique terms and services to government 
employers.  The references provided by AppleOne and checked by staff 
included Contra Costa County, San Francisco Administrative Offices of the 
Courts and NASA Research Center.  All references were very positive. 
 
Staff recommends awarding a contract for Temporary Employment Services 
to Howroyd-Wright Employment Services, dba AppleOne, for a one year 
period with options for a second and third year and authorizing the Executive 
Director to sign the necessary contract documents.  



 

29 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 

       

 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA  94541-6633 

Tel. 510.538.8876 TDD 510.727.8551 Fax 510.886.1964 www.haca.net 

 

 

 

TEMPORARY EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 

2010-2013 

Thursday, February 18, 2010 at 4:00 p.m. 
 

Present: 

 Tom Makin, Deputy Director for Operations 

Barbara Barlow, Administrative Assistant 

Angel Geil, Administrative Analyst/Procurement 

 Barbara Zimmerman, Recording Secretary 

 Bill Marshall, The Plus Group 

 Patrick O’Donnell, The Plus Group 

 Kim Wetzig, RHI/OfficeTeam 

 

Mr. Makin announced that it was 4:00 p.m. and that the submittal for bids was closed.  The following bids were opened and announced: 
 

FIRM CITY GRAND BID 

TOTAL 

 
Manpower Fremont $156,958.48 

Snelling Staffing Services Alameda $209,106.00 

Howroyd-Wright Employment Agency, Inc 

dba AppleOne Government Solutions 

Torrance 

Fremont 

$151,730.64 

Robert Half International/OfficeTeam San Mateo $203,049.10 

$247,222.78 

Staffmark San Francisco None Listed  

Nelson Family of Companies Sonoma $174,066.72 

West Valley Staffing Group Sunnyvale $165,740.00 

$218,003.00 

Mainstay Business Solutions Folsom $154,845.82 

The Plus Group San Ramon $179,862.48 

   

   
:bz Temporary Employment Services 2010-2013 

2/18/10 



 

30 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  March 10, 2010 
 
 

Subject: Appointment of Scholarship Committee 
  
Exhibits Attached: None 
  
Recommendation: Appoint Committee Members 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Each year, the HACA Scholarship Program provides an opportunity for 
residents of the Public Housing program and participants of the Family Self-
Sufficiency (FSS) program to apply for a scholarship that can be used to pay 
for eligible expenses related to their education.  Up to 10 scholarships (not to 
exceed $15,000 in total) are awarded each year.  
 
Your Commission needs to appoint members to the Scholarship Committee to 
work with staff in reviewing scholarship applications.  Commissioner 
Natarajan is currently the only member on the Scholarship Committee as 
former Committee members Runa Atai and Allan Maris are no longer on the 
Commission. 
 
The Committee usually has one meeting at the HACA offices, typically 
following the Housing Commission’s regular meeting, and follow-up 
discussions via telephone or email if needed.  The Committee then makes 
award recommendations to the Commission for approval.   
 



 

31 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET STATUS 

REPORTS 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 

32 

 
 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER 

Budget Status Report FYE 2009-2010 

January 2010 

 

 

 

 

 

FY 2010 Budgeted @ Actual @ OVER PROJECTED SCH. 2009 2010

OPERATING BUDGET 1/31/2010 1/31/2010 (UNDER) TO 6/30/10 NO. BUDGET BUDGET DIFFERENCE

INCOME

Investment Income 19,833 735 (19,098) 1,260 A1 39,500 34,000 (5,500)

Misc. Income 203,000 202,182 (818) 346,598 A1 450,300 348,000 (102,300)

(Fees) 4,379,742 4,153,953 (225,789) 7,121,062 A 6,987,776 7,508,129 520,354

TOTAL INCOME 4,602,575 4,356,870 (245,706) 7,468,920 7,477,576 7,890,129 412,554

EXPENSES

Administration

Salaries 2,566,883 2,387,334 (179,549) 4,092,573 B-1& 2 4,191,398 4,400,371 208,973

Other Admin. 645,129 726,061 80,932 1,244,676 C-1&2 986,473 1,105,936 119,463

Total 3,212,012 3,113,395 (98,617) 5,337,249 5,177,871 5,506,306 328,436

General

Insurance 99,637 82,679 (16,958) 141,735 E 155,433 170,807 15,374

Employee Benefits 1,283,441 1,119,366 (164,076) 1,918,913 2,095,699 2,200,185 104,486

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 1,383,079 1,202,045 (181,034) 2,060,648 2,251,132 2,370,992 119,860

Total Routine Expenses 4,595,091 4,315,440 (279,651) 7,397,897 7,429,003 7,877,298 448,296

Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 D2 33,700 0 (33,700)

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,595,091 4,315,440 (279,651) 7,397,897 7,462,703 7,877,298 414,596

NET INCOME (DEFICIT) 7,485 41,430 33,945 71,023 14,873 12,831 (2,042)

Unrestricted Net Assets-AF @ 6/30/08 2,633,795$        

Income/(Deficit) @ 6/30/09 344,413

Projected Unrestricted Net Assets @ 6/30/09 2,978,208$        

Budgeted Income/(Deficit) @ 6/30/10 12,831
Budgeted Unrestricted Net Assets-AF @ 6/30/10 2,991,039$        



 

33 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 

PUBLIC HOUSING 

Budget Status Report FYE 2009-2010 

January 2010 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY 2010 YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUALS OVER/(UNDER) Projected SCH. 2009 2010  
OPERATING BUDGET 1/31/2010 1/31/10 BUDGET to 6/30/10 NO. BUDGET BUDGET Difference

INCOME

Dwelling Rentals 648,620 588,930 (59,690) 1,009,595 1,111,920 1,111,920 0
Investment Income  5,469 447 (5,022) 766 A 18,400 9,375 (9,025)

Misc. Income 100,137 92,838 (7,298) 159,152 82,905 171,663 88,758
Operating Subsidy (HUD form 52723) 239,743 235,771 (3,973) 404,179 ** 334,582 410,989 76,407

Capital Grant (salaries/benefits) 88,242 0 (88,242) 0 105,923 151,272 45,349
TOTAL INCOME 1,082,210 917,987 (164,225) 1,573,691 1,653,730 1,855,218 201,488

 
EXPENSES  

 
Administration  

Salaries 224,551 200,789 (23,762) 344,210 B-1& 2 406,827 384,945 (21,882)
Other Admin. 34,677 35,447 770 60,765 C-1 51,853 59,446 7,593

Total 259,228 236,236 (22,993) 404,975 458,680 444,391 (14,289)
 

Tenant Services  
Resident Managers 3,208 1,575 (1,633) 2,700 5,500 5,500 0
Recreation 4,375 7,068 2,693 7,500 7,500 7,500 0

Total 7,583 8,643 1,060 10,200 13,000 13,000 0
 

Utilities  
Water 52,526 41,261 (11,265) 70,734 90,045 90,045 0

Electricity 11,585 9,802 (1,783) 16,803 19,860 19,860 0
Gas 3,321 1,303 (2,017) 2,233 5,693 5,693 0

Sewage 26,250 26,250 0 45,000 40,156 45,000 4,844
Total 93,682 78,616 (15,064) 134,770 155,754 160,598 4,844

 
Maintenance  

Salaries 71,414 71,909 495 123,272 B-2 118,296 122,424 4,128
Materials 73,186 45,828 (27,358) 78,562 D 76,997 125,461 48,464

Capital Fund Grants (62,058) 0 62,058 0 (175,786) (106,385) 69,402
Contract Costs 446,578 337,358 (109,219) 578,329 D 677,715 765,562 87,847

Total 529,120 455,095 (74,025) 780,163 697,222 907,062 209,840
 

General  
Insurance 37,853 32,297 (5,556) 55,366 E 67,553 64,891 (2,662)
Tax-In Lieu Of 55,494 55,493 (0) 95,132 95,617 95,132 (485)

Employee Benefits 147,983 105,262 (42,721) 180,449 262,561 253,685 (8,876)
Collection Loss 583 0 (583) 1,000 1,000 1,000 0

Miscellaneous 583 0 (583) 1,000 1,000 1,000 0
Total 242,496 193,052 (49,443) 332,946 427,731 415,708 (12,023)

 
Total Routine Expenses 1,132,110 971,641 (160,466) 1,663,054 1,752,386 1,940,759 188,373

 
Capital Expenditure 0 0 0

 
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,132,110 971,641 (160,466) 1,663,054 1,752,386 1,940,759 188,373

 

NET INCOME (DEFICIT) (49,899) (53,655) (3,759) (89,363) (98,656) (85,541) 13,115

Net Assets, @ 7/1/08 455,550
Net Deficit @ 6/30/09 (171,697)
Net Assets, 6/30/09 283,853$       
Budgeted Net Loss @ 6/30/10 (85,541)
Budgeted Net Assets, 6/30/10 198,311$       



 

34 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROGRAMS ACTIVITY 

 REPORTS 
 



 

35 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  March 10, 2010 
 

Subject: Programs Activity Report 
  
Exhibits Attached: Section 8 Contract Report; Fraud Payments Report; 

Landlord Rental Listing Report; FSS Program 
Monthly Report 

  
Recommendation: Receive Report 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS 

 
• Lease-Up:  As of March 1, 2010 the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program 

had 5,589 units under contract.  The 3-month lease-up average for the 2009 
calendar year is 98.98%. 

 
• Program Utilization:  As of March 1, 2010 the average HAP subsidy is $1,066 

and the average tenant-paid rent portion is $359 for an average Contract Rent 
of $1,425. 
 
� As of March 1, 2010 HACA has 116 outgoing billed portability contracts (i.e., 

HACA voucher holders who are housed in another housing authority’s 
jurisdiction).   

� As of March 1, 2010 HACA billed other housing authorities, primarily the 
Oakland Housing Authority, for 1,474 incoming portability contracts.  HACA 
receives only 80% of the HUD-authorized Administrative Fee for billed 
incoming portability contracts. 

 
• Section 8 Contract Report:  A copy of the Contract Report is attached. 
 
• Fraud / Debt Recovery:  HACA retained $6,752.48 in fraud and debt recovery 

payments for the month of February 2010.  A total of $33,306.73 was retained 
over the last six months.   
 
HACA retained $691.50 in Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) overpayments for 
the month of February 2010.  A total of $3,737.70 was retained over the last six 
months. 

 
• Landlord Rental Listings:  As of March 1, 2010 there are 1,086 landlords with 

properties in HACA’s jurisdiction utilizing the GoSection8 rental listing service.  
Of those, 32 are new to the Section 8 program this month.  There were 224 
active properties listed.  



 

36 

FAMILY SELF SUFFICIENCY 
 

February was a planning month in FSS.  The process of document imaging for FSS 
case files has begun.  Staff developed a preliminary event calendar for the year and 
confirmed workshops for the first quarter.  We met with our advisory group, the 
Program Coordinating Committee.  Members of this group provided valuable 
updates on the real estate market for our homeownership candidates.  The 
representative from Eden I&R provided updates on emergency housing options. 
 
PUBLIC HOUSING 
 
• Occupancy:  As of March 1, 2010 the Public Housing program had 222 of 230 

units leased and has a 96.96% fiscal year-to-date lease up rate. 
  



 

37 

 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
Section 8 Contract and HAP Report for the month of February 2010 

 

 

 Certificates Vouchers 
FEBRUARY 2010 

TOTAL  

City Number HAP* Number HAP** Number HAP  

FEBRUARY 
2009 

FEBRUARY 
2008 

Albany        -     $            -           45   $      47,880         45   $     47,880   43 42 

Castro 
Valley        13   $      11,453       242   $    257,488       255   $   268,941   250 259 

Dublin          2   $       1,762       231   $    245,784       233   $   247,546   206 167 

Emeryville          6   $       5,286         91   $      96,824         97   $   102,110   100 104 

Fremont        28   $      24,668    1,405   $ 1,494,920    1,433   $1,519,588   1,362 1,436 

Hayward      109   $      96,029    2,290   $ 2,436,560    2,399   $2,532,589   2,414 2,410 

Newark          3   $       2,643       297   $    316,008       300   $   318,651   293 295 

Pleasanton          3   $       2,643       143   $    152,152       146   $   154,795   147 145 

San 
Leandro        20   $      17,620    1,311   $ 1,394,904    1,331   $1,412,524   1,286 1,295 

San 
Lorenzo          2   $       1,762       190   $    202,160       192   $   203,922   180 184 

Union City          3   $       2,643       701   $    745,864       704   $   748,507   704 738 

TOTALS 189  $166,509.00 6,946 $7,390,544.00 7,135 $7,557,053.00  6,985 7,075 

 

 

 

 

 
 
* based on an average February Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $884 per certificate contract 
**based on an average February Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $1064 per voucher contract 



 

3
8
 

 

09
-1
0

D
E
B
T
 C

O
LL

E
C
TI

O
N
S

F
Y
E
 6
/3
0/
10

JU
L
Y

A
U
G
U
S
T
S
E
P
TE
M
B
E
R
O
C
TO
B
E
R
N
O
V
E
M
B
E
R
D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R

JA
N
U
A
R
Y

F
E
B
R
U
A
R
Y

M
A
R
C
H

A
P
R
IL

M
A
Y

JU
N
E

G
R
A
N
D

TO
TA
L
S

D
A
M
A
G
E
 C
L
A
IM
S

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$5

0.
00

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$6
5.

00
$0

.0
0

$1
15
.0
0

F
R
A
U
D
 R
E
P
A
Y
M
E
N
T
S

$1
5,

45
6.

33
$8

,0
02

.8
3

$6
,0

44
.4

4
$5

,0
83

.9
6

$4
,7

35
.9

2
$4

,4
52

.9
4

$6
,2

36
.9

9
$6

,7
52

.4
8

$5
6,
76
5.
89

H
A
P
 O
V
E
R
P
A
Y
M
E
N
T
S

$6
86

.5
0

$5
38

.0
0

$6
91

.5
0

$5
70

.0
0

$5
01

.0
0

$5
76

.7
0

$6
13

.5
0

$7
85

.0
0

$4
,9
62
.2
0

T
O
T
A
L
S

$1
6,
14
2.
83

$8
,5
40
.8
3

$6
,7
35
.9
4

$5
,7
03
.9
6

$5
,2
36
.9
2

$5
,0
29
.6
4

$6
,9
15
.4
9

$7
,5
37
.4
8

$0
.0
0

$0
.0
0

$0
.0
0

$0
.0
0

$6
1,
84
3.
09



 

3
9
 

 

M
o
n
th
ly

3
/2
/0
9

4
/1
/0
9

5
/1
/0
9

6
/1
/0
9

7
/1
/0
9

8
/1
/0
9

9
/1
/0
9

1
0
/1
/0
9

1
1
/2
/0
9

1
2
/1
/0
9

1
/4
/1
0

2
/1
/1
0

3
/1
/1
0

R
e
g
is
te
re
d
 L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s

3
4
9

4
2
3

4
9
9

5
8
4

6
4
8

7
1
6

7
8
3

8
3
8

8
9
0

9
5
9

1
0
1
2

1
0
5
0

1
0
8
6

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 N
e
w
 t
o
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 8
 P
ro
g
ra
m

3
4

3
9

3
6

3
8

3
3

4
3

2
8

2
5

2
9

4
1

3
0

2
4

3
2

A
c
ti
v
e
 P
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 

L
is
te
d

1
1
6

1
3
1

2
1
1

2
4
1

2
3
6

2
4
9

2
6
3

2
4
5

2
3
8

2
5
1

2
3
1

2
5
2

2
2
4

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
 R
e
n
ta
l 
L
is
ti
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
 R
e
n
ta
l 
L
is
ti
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt

0

2
0
0

4
0
0

6
0
0

8
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
2
0
0

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M a
y- 0
9

J
u
n
-

0
9

J
u
l-

0
9

A
u
g
-

0
9

S
e
p
-

0
9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-

0
9

D
e
c
-

0
9

J
a
n
-

1
0

F
e
b
-

1
0

M
a
r-

1
0

R
e
g
is

te
re

d
L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 N

e
w

 t
o

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 8

 P
ro

g
ra

m

A
c
ti
v
e
 P

ro
p
e
rt
ie

s
L
is

te
d



 

40 

 

To:  Christine Gouig, Executive Director 

From:  Sharon DeCray, HAFS Manager 

Re:  FSS Program Summary 

CC:  Ron Dion, Phyllis Harrison, Linda Evans 

Date:  March 1, 2010 

Program Summary February 2010 

Total Clients under Contract: 199 
Graduates: 3 
Escrow Disbursed: $24,094.60 
Ports In: 0 
Ports Out: 1 
Terminations: 2 
New Contracts: 3 

 
FSS Program News: 
 
Workshops 
FSS had a Program Coordinating Committee (PCC) meeting on Thursday February 4, 
2010. PCC attendees included a representative from Realty World. We were given an 
update on the current housing market and the immediate outlook for low-income buyer’s 
home purchasing prospects. A representative from Eden I & R also gave an update on 
the Homeless Prevention Rapid Re-Housing funds. 
 
FSS held a Money Management 1 workshop on Saturday February 27, 2010 in 
collaboration with MeriWest Credit Union. Fifteen people enrolled and eight attended. 
The topics included introduction to checking accounts and tips on how to set up a 
personal budget that included a take home budget exercise. 
 
Upcoming Workshops 
Money Management 2 - March 2010 
Creating a Successful Plan for Life - March 2010 
Children’s Money Management - April 2010 
 
Staffing   
Recruitment for the open position of FSS Coordinator was closed on February 26, 2010. 
The applicants will be screened and qualified applicants will be interviewed in March. 
 
Referrals= 62 Case Management Referrals 
 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT  A 
 
 
 
 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 

 
ATTACHMENT B 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



  



  



  



  



  



  

                   
   

 

 



  



  



  



  



  



  



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 



 

 



  



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



  



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



  



  



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 


